Approved: February 22, 2006

Date

MINUTES OF THE SENATE EDUCATION COMMITTEE

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Jean Schodorf at 1:40 p.m. on February 9, 2006, in Room 123-S of the Capitol.

Committee members absent:

Committee staff present: Carolyn Rampey, Kansas Legislative Research Department Kathie Sparks, Kansas Legislative Research Department Theresa Kiernan, Revisor of Statutes Shirley Higgins, Committee Secretary

Conferees appearing before the committee: Dr. Robert Masters, Vice President for Academic Affairs, Kansas Board of Regents

SB 331 - Technical colleges; governing body, school district

Carolyn Rampey, Kansas Legislative Research Department, explained that, when the state allowed area vocational schools to become technical schools, it was voluntary on the part of the area school. Then, in 2002, the Board of Regents adopted a policy for the schools that had become technical colleges which said that they were required to achieve North Central Association accreditation from the Higher Learning Commission. The Legislature followed up in 2003 with **SB7**, which facilitated the accreditation in the sense that the technical college was required to have an independent board separate from the school district. Ms. Rampey went on to say that there is nothing in the law that allows for a technical college to opt out. She explained that **<u>SB 331</u>** goes into **<u>SB 7</u>** and gives a mechanism for a technical college to revert to an area vocational school. She noted that there are six technical colleges, and five are meeting the requirements to become accredited, but a technical college in Atchison does not want to proceed. The bill would give the option to any school that wants to opt out. She pointed out the amendments on page two of the bill. The first amendment on lines 3-13 applies to a school that has been approved to be a technical college. She noted that the board must make a recommendation, and legislative approval is required to change the name to a technical college. She explained that the language applies in cases wherein a school has been approved to be a technical college, but it has failed to pursue accreditation. The bill gives the Board of Regents the option to determine that those schools will revert to an area vocational school. The second amendment on lines 22 through 33 applies to a school that has not yet been approved to be a technical college either because it failed to submit an application or because it submitted a plan, but the Board of Regents did not approve it. This amendment gives these schools a mechanism to opt out.

Ms. Rampey called particular attention to a sentence beginning on line 12 and repeated on line 32 which provided that, when a technical college reverts to a area vocational school, it may not offer any course that leads to an academic degree. She suggested that the intention was that, if the school is an area vocational school, it may not offer an academic degree. She noted, "If you believe that this is saying the area vocational school cannot offer a technical course that transfers to a community college, I don't believe that's the intent of what the Board of Regents wanted or what the LEPC meant when it looked at this." Committee discussion followed. It was the consensus of the Committee that the language should be clarified or stricken.

Dr. Robert Masters, Vice President of Academic Affairs for the Kansas Board of Regents, testified in support of **SB 331**. He noted that the bill addresses technical institutions that wish to remain under local school district governance and that current statutes did not provide for this situation. He went on to discuss the primary difference between a technical school and a technical college, and he listed the six Kansas technical colleges. In addition, he discussed the1999 Higher Education Coordination Act, which resulted in transferring the coordination of technical schools and colleges from the State Board of Education to the Board of Regents. In conclusion, he noted that, although the impact of reverting from a college to a school would be the loss of degree-granting authority, the school would be able to continue to offer postsecondary courses leading to a certificate and/or transferring courses to a degree-granting institution. (Attachment 1) When questioned concerning the intent of lines 12 and 13 as discussed by Ms. Rampey, Mr. Masters agreed that the language was unclear.

Senator Teichman moved to amend **SB 331** on page two by striking lines 12 and 13 ("Such school shall not offer any course that leads to an academic degree.), and the same sentence on lines 32 and 33, seconded by Senator Pine. The motion carried.

CONTINUATION SHEET

MINUTES OF THE Senate Education Committee at 1:40 p.m. on February 9, 2006, in Room 123-S of the Capitol.

There being no others wishing to testify, the hearing on **<u>SB 331</u>** was closed.

Senator Schodorf turned the Committee's attention to a previously heard bill, <u>SB 481</u> concerning state aid for school districts which consolidate. Requested data on bond and interest state aid, prepared by Jim Hays, Kansas Association of School Boards, had been distributed to Committee members. (Attachment 2)

Theresa Kiernan, Revisor of Statutes Office, noted that the intent of <u>SB 481</u> was to extend the current incentives that are given to school districts when they consolidate. The districts would get the combination of the state aid received prior to the consolidation so that they would get special treatment for three years. For bond and interest and capital outlay state aid, they would get the higher or highest of the state aid percentage factor. With regard to bond and interest state aid, she recalled that the Committee had discussed using the life of the bond instead of three years. In that case, the district would have the higher or the highest of the percentage factor until the bonds are retired. Committee discussion followed regarding bond and interest state aid.

Senator Teichmant moved to amend **SB 481** to allow bond and interest state aid for the remaining life of the bond instead of for three years.

Senator Vratil asked, "Do we know how much that's going to cost?" Senator Teichman responded, "They may save money, but I don't think they are going to spend any more money." Senator Vratil commented, "But the whole purpose of this bill is to encourage districts to consolidate so we can save money. If we amend it so we don't save any money when they consolidate, there's no purpose for the bill." Senator Teichman commented that, in her opinion, the purpose of the bill was to encourage consolidation whether it saves money or it doesn't save money. Senator Vratil commented further that the proposed amendment would result in giving up potential savings, but it was unknown how much potential savings would be given up. Senator Lee noted that it was unknown how many districts were currently considering consolidation; therefore, the cost could not be determined. She went on to say, "This is just one way to take one of the impediments out of the way of those consolidation efforts when one of the school districts has a bond payment and the other one doesn't." Senator Schodorf added, "In fact, we've never had a study to see what the savings would be to consolidate. We really don't know if there's savings at all." Senator Apple commented, "I know we heard testimony at least twice that what's driving consolidation is not necessarily about dollars. It's how they can better serve their students by combining their resources." Senator Vratil commented, "It occurs to me that, if this amendment goes onto the bill and the bill ultimately passes, we are creating a situation where a consolidated school district with 500 students would actually get more state aid for their bond and interest than a non-consolidated school district with 200 students because you're going to continue to treat them as if they were not consolidated, and that's going to create disparities in the system. A consolidated school district with greater assessed valuation per pupil will end up getting more state aid than a non-consolidated school district with less assessed valuation per pupil because we're grandfathering in the existing system."

Senator Apple suggested that, in the interest not harming the bill, the Committee consider five years instead of three years. Senator Vratil stated that he would support the compromise figure of five years. Senator Teichman opened a discussion on what would happen after five years. Senator Ostmeyer commented, "They did tell us that they had agreed amongst their districts. I would like to see us pass this bill out. It's a good bill. They gave us a good bill. Let's pass it out and work this on the floor. I'd rather make sure that they get their bill out on the floor because the school districts are wanting to do something."

Senator Teichman withdrew her motion.

Senator Ostmeyer moved to recommend **SB 481** favorably for passage, seconded by Senator Apple. The motion carried.

The meeting was adjourned at 2:30 p.m.

The next meeting is scheduled for February 13, 2006.

CONTINUATION SHEET

MINUTES OF THE Senate Education Committee at 1:40 p.m. on February 9, 2006, in Room 123-S of the Capitol.